3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


GSA General Council Meeting Minutes

April 3, 2002

The meeting was called to order at 6:08 pm.

Approval of Agenda

Agenda for the meeting was approved. Edward Collins moved, and Mark
Schuller seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent. Mark Schuller moved to add
a part (C) (2) to Section VII of the April agenda. Johnathan Pearl seconded.

Approval of Minutes

John Corbett moved to strike the last sentence of Section VII (A) of the March 6,
2002, minutes. Johnathan seconded. Minutes from the March 6, 2002, meeting
were approved. Edward moved, and Karen Blair of Geology seconded. Adopted
by unanimous consent.

Graduate Division

Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, encouraged students to
take the student survey on the Graddiv website at
https://www.graddiv.ucsb.edu/hed/hedauth.cfm, as it went online on the day of
the meeting. She noted that graduate student data was desperately needed so that
Graddiv could properly advocate on their behalf. She announced that six cash
prizes of a value of up to $300 would be randomly given to participants.

McMahon also stressed the need for graduate students to sign-up in order to
participate in this year's commencement ceremonies. The deadline is April 15,
2002. She also passed out fliers on the Academic Workshop Series and the
Spring 2002 Career Workshop Series. Lastly, she announced that fellowship
funding was available to graduate students that sought it out.

Vox Populi

No issues were raised from the floor.

Campus Resources

The current proposals for the 2002-03 Graduate Student Health Insurance
Program (GSHIP) were presented by Roy Landstrom, President of Renaissance

Insurance Agencies, Inc., Alan Levy of Physics, and April Beckett, Director of
Clinical Services at Student Health Services.





Alan Levy spoke in detail about the GSHIP plan figures. He noted that the data
provided by Renaissance Insurance was proprietary in nature and hence should
not be shared with anyone beyond the scope of the meeting. Levy touched upon
all seventeen of the items on the GSHIP "menu,"” explaining pricing and policy
aspects of the proposals.

Alan noted that UCSB may wind up providing more in terms of benefits than it
spends on insurance premiums. He observed that this was due to the fact that by
previous agreement, the insurance company was not allowed to raise its premiums
by more than eleven per cent, meaning that students were getting "a good deal.”

Cynthia Bowers presented another list responding to each of the seventeen items
on the original list. Several students asked clarifying questions about the material.
Then more general questions followed from the floor.

Stu Levenbach of Marine Biology raised questions about the exact nature of the
"one business day" notification period.

Shawn Landres remarked about the propriety of maintaining a fifty-mile radius
rule on certain benefits.

Brooke Vick of Psychology asked about being able to see a non-SHS doctor about
a pre-existing condition such as asthma. Alan said coverage would still be at the
50% rate.

Jonathan Pearl raised a concern over what the $10 premium increase would pay
for. He suggested that the fifty-mile radius be expanded or eliminated altogether.
Shawn observed that it should be encouraged that students visit the SHS, although
he said that Roy had agreed to look into the feasibility of one-hundred per cent
coverage beyond the fifty-mile radius.

Daisy Lemus of Communication raised the issue over paying for medication
outside the fifty-mile radius. Alan explained that she would need to submit a
claim.

Sarah Woodward asked about the exclusion of hernias from coverage. April
clarified that hernias often result from obesity surgery, which is often cosmetic in
nature.

Stacey Shears, Director of the Resource Center for Sexual and Gender Diversity,
spoke about parts 11 and 12 on the GSHIP menu relating to the need for "gender
reassignment,” which she said she favored. She said that transsexual students
don't always use surgery. Alan responded that the need for such a benefit must be
evaluated. Stacey emphasized that it is a high priority among affected students.
Jonathan inquired whether the two per cent figure of affected students (equating
to roughly 400) was correct. Stacey responded that this was the case.





Kurt Anderson asked what such a surgery could cost, to which Stacey replied
about $40,000, although the figure various depending on whether the process was
male to female or female to male.

A proposal was made to extend floor discussion by fifteen minutes. Edward
moved, and Jonathan seconded.

Shawn inquired about graduate students with dependents. Mary McMahon said
that twenty-five per cent of graduate students are married, not including domestic
partners. As a result, she observed, the issue of dependents looms large. Mark
Schuller of Anthropology stated that he favored increased coverage for
dependents. Shawn remarked about the difficulty of securing outside coverage
for such dependents.

Stu said that as only a minority of graduate students utilize services for
dependents, it could be difficult to persuade graduates to pass such GSHIP
requests without additional information. Jonathan suggested offering reduced
prices for those who went through an optional medical exam. Alan noted that the
issue on item 14 is effectively having graduate students subsidize dependents.
Roy remarked that decisions made on the basis of exams could take something on
the order of ninety days, which he observed would not do much good for those
who needed services in a timely manner. Kurt reiterated his concern over the lack
of information regarding service usage.

A proposal was made to extend floor discussion by five minutes. Edward moved,
and John Corbett seconded.

Edward inquired about the method used to compute premium prices. Roy
responded that some of the risk assessments are mere guesswork.

Mary McMahon asked about the possibility of computing information based upon
Stu and Kurt's concerns. She noted that some international students pay their own
GSHIP prices because they aren't eligible for many fellowships.

Sarah noted that many married students waive GSHIP because spouses often have
superior plans. Alan responded that the rates offered to spouses in the GSHIP
plan "aren't great," but that they represent an improvement over previous rates,
something that hasn't transpired "in recent memory."

Jonathan suggested uncovering information on uninsured dependents of graduate
students. Mark said he favored anecdotal information from department
representatives on the amount of coverage currently utilized.

Alan requested additional feedback via email at alevy@cfi.ucsb.edu.






VI.

Information Items

A

Committee Reports

Edward noted that the Campus Election Committee had met. He also gave a
brief report on the situation regarding the child care facility of the planned
Student Resources Building.

Jonathan spoke about the Library Committee. He said that the library will
be undergoing a major renovation during the 2007-08 school year, and that
comments and feedback are welcome and important. He noted his email
address is jpearl@umail.ucsb.edu. He reminded students that feedback for
this project is especially critical because it is unlikely any other major
renovation will occur for several decades afterward.

Soomin Chun announced the Margaret T. Getman and the William J. Villa
awards through Student Affairs. She noted that nominations will close on
April 22nd.

Officer Reports

Edward announced that the Isla Vista Project Area Committee (IVPAC)
would hold meetings from April 9th through the 16th.

Sarah announced that Environmental Health and Safety is currently seeking
someone to fill the position of departmental director. The search committee
is looking for students to serve on it. Stu Levenbach observed that most
students are unaware of the role and accomplishments of EH&S.

CEC Campuswide Election — UCen Fee Reaffirmation

Shawn noted that the Campus Elections Commission (CEC) has requested
that the GSA host a Recreation Center Fee Reaffirmation in the amount of
$9.00 per quarter per students. A proposal was made to participate in the
reaffirmation, provided that:

1) The GSA's turnout count on any referendum item will be the turnout on
that item only, and

2) The GSA requires that CEC count referendum ballots separately from
AS ballots, such that turnout on any referendum question (but NOT turnout
in AS elections only) may be counted toward the total CEC turnout count.

Edward moved, and Sarah Woodward seconded.





VII.

Old Business and Action Items

A

Confirmation of Jonathan Pearl as Vice President for Academic Affairs
(Spring 2002)

Edward moved, and Karen Blair seconded.

Committee Appointments/Confirmations

No appointments or confirmations were made.

Budget

1.

Confirmation of System Administrator contract for Spring 2002

Shawn and Alan Levy discussed Mark Schuller's concern that the
System Administrator could conceivably be paid for incomplete work.
A proposal was made to pay the System Administrator only if tasks
relating to the successful completion of the Spring 2002 elections were
completed. Edward moved, and Jonathan seconded.

Raagmala funding proposal

A request for $300 to sponsor an event for Raagmala was discussed. A
motion was made to provide funding so long as the GSA funding did
not pay for publicity or for a second performance. Edward moved, and
Sarah Woodward seconded.

Technical amendments to the proposed GSA Constitution

A motion was made by Edward to approve minor grammatical and
punctuation changes to the proposed constitution. Jonathan seconded.

By-laws to govern nomination, election, and referenda for Spring 2002

A motion was made by John to formally request five-hundred-word pro- and
con-statements to be included in the voters' guide for the upcoming election.
Edward seconded. The motion was approved by voice vote.

Alan made an omnibus motion to include in the by-laws language permitting

a voter guide to be assigned a URL and to be placed on the World Wide
Web, set the start date of the election for April 18th and the end date on

April 25th, and to authorize the GSA executive committee to hold elections.

The move was seconded by Karen Blair. The motion was approved by
voice vote.





VIII.  Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 pm.
Respectfully submitted,

John Corbett
GSA Press Secretary






GSA General Council Meeting Minutes

December 5, 2001

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 pm.

V.

VI.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes from November 7, 2001, meeting were approved. Edward Collins moved, and Kathy Meyer seconded.
Adopted by unanimous consent.

Approval of Agenda

Agenda for the meeting was approved. Edward moved, and Kathy seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Graduate Division
A. Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, explained that one building in the new Manzanita
complex would be devoted to graduate student housing, likely for out-of-state students. This will include
45 beds in single and shared rooms and represents a partial, temporary solution for the graduate housing

shortage.

B. Mary also requested feedback from graduate students for their views and input regarding the Student
Resources Building. She can be contacted via email at deans@graddiv.ucsb.edu.

C. Yonie Harris, Dean of Students, was introduced as the new interim advisor to the GSA from the Office of

Student Life. She recommended that graduate students form their own focus groups regarding the Student
Resources Building. Yonie can be contacted at harris-y@sa.ucsb.edu.

Vox Populi
A. Shawn Landres introduced AS Internal Vice President Shaina Walter, who was attending the meeting
representing Associated Students.
B. Jeff Onsted of Geography noted that outdated furniture in his department has poor ergonomics, and may

lead to physical injuries if not addressed. Shawn noted that the GSA would look into establishing
guidelines for future furniture purchases. Mary McMahon responded that such issues should be addressed
within the individual departments before any further actions are taken. Shawn noted that safety issues
affecting students in their roles as teaching assistants are union issues, which can be addressed to the
Graduate Division accordingly.
C. Stu Levenbach of Marine Biology announced that the Shoreline Preservation Fund, of which he is a

graduate representative, is offering grants to students doing related research. The Shoreline Preservation
Fund website can be found at http://spf.as.ucsb.edu.

Campus Resources

Dr. Cynthia Bowers, Director of the Student Health Service, addressed the impact of budget cuts on the SHS and the
students that use it. She noted that cuts ranging from ten percent to fifteen percent by mid-2002 were likely.
Although she explained that services are unlikely to be cut, she noted that the SHS would either have to support an
increased lock-in fee or additional fees per visit. The latter option could include items such as lab fees, physical
therapy fees, etc. Regarding lock-in fees, using her calculations, which were made available to interested students,
the size of the lock-in fee increase could range anywhere from $5.33 to $13 per quarter, depending on the size of
the budget cut. She noted that graduate students have traditionally supported increased lock-in fees. Mark from
Anthropology raised concerns that students receiving the bulk of the cuts because they often have the least clout as
a group on campus. Dr. Bowers responded that graduate students need to voice concerns over how the cuts should
be distributed.

Jeff from Geography raised concerns about price confusion and insurance claims delays. Desiree from Anthropology
noted the need for additional women's services.

April Beckett, Director of Clinical Services at SHS, discussed the possibility of increasing SHS benefits to dependents
of graduate students.

Action Items
A. Committee Appointments/Confirmations

Committee appointments approved as submitted. Edward moved, Kathy seconded.

B. Budget
1. Officer and committee stipend reauthorization
a. Kathy passed out a list of stipend adjustments to address inequities in time spent on
various committees, as certain committees demand much greater work than do





C. Funding requests

others. Approval of the proposed adjustments was moved by Edward and seconded
by Jeff Onsted. Adopted by unanimous consent.

It was proposed that committee members should not be paid for sitting on
committees that don't meet. This was moved by Edward and seconded by Soomin
Chun. Adopted by unanimous consent.

No requests were presented.

D. Campus Elections Reform

Shawn introduced a timeline of the election reform issue as it has developed over
the past year. The document detailed the controversial passage of the Student
Resources Building in the elections of April 2001 and the subsequent GSA actions for
future election reform, plus the response of the Campus Elections Commission in
forming a Working Group to outline changes for future elections. Shawn explained
that the Working Group's proposed changes were acceptable to the GSA. At the same
time, he expressed deep dissatisfaction with what he believed to be attempts by the
CEC to delay implementation of the Working Group reforms until after the 2002
elections.

Jessica Winston further elaborated on the election rules and how the SRB could be
approved with less than fifteen percent support among graduate students under
current rules.

Alan Levy, member of the Campus Elections Commission, explained that the CEC
believes that there will not be enough time to implement the reforms for the April
2002 elections.

A resolution calling for the immediate implementation of campus election reform
was moved by Jessica and seconded by Edward.

Campus Elections Resolution Draft

Background

On June 26, 2001, the Chancellor wrote to the Campus Elections Commission
requesting that an Ad Hoc Working Group be appointed by the CEC. The charge of
the Ad Hoc Working Group was to review the campus-wide elections process, with a
focus on concerns outlined by the Graduate Students Association.

The Ad Hoc Working Group met throughout the months of October and November,
2001. Its recommendations to the Campus Elections Commission regarding campus-
wide elections were presented to the CEC on November 26, 2001.

Resolution

Whereas the GSA General Council finds that the currently approved guidelines of the
Campus Elections Commission disenfranchise graduate students; and

Whereas the GSA General Council acknowledges that the Campus Elections
Commission has expressed its intent to consider improving its guidelines in response
to graduate student concerns; and

Whereas the GSA General Council notes that both the Memorandum of Understanding
recommending the establishment of the Ad Hoc Working Group and the Chancellor’s
charge to the Campus Elections Commission anticipates that the Working Group’s
recommendations would be considered for implementation "in time for Spring 2002
elections"; and

Whereas the GSA General Council finds that the Working Group Report provides
remedies that address these flaws in a barely adequate manner; and





Whereas the GSA General Council finds that implementing the Working Group's
recommendations is a necessary, but not entirely sufficient, first step toward
rectifying the inequities in the current Campus Elections Commission guidelines; and

Whereas the GSA General Council finds that any campus-wide election run under
current or only superficially revised guidelines would be unacceptable; and

Whereas the GSA General Council recognizes the importance and urgency of putting
mandatory student fee proposals before student voters; and

Whereas the GSA General Council notes that according to current campus
regulations, the GSA is authorized to hold mandatory student fee referenda for
graduate students, just as the Associated Students is authorized to hold mandatory
student fee referenda for undergraduate students;

Therefore be it resolved:

That the GSA General Council registers its deep disappointment that the Campus
Elections Commission to date has not devoted sufficient consideration to applying
the Ad Hoc Working Group’s recommendations in time for Spring 2002 elections; and

That the GSA General Council encourages the Campus Elections Commission to apply
the Ad Hoc Working Group’s recommendations in time for Spring 2002 elections; and

That the GSA General Council requests that the Chancellor not authorize any
campus-wide elections overseen by the Campus Elections Commission until such time
as the CEC reviews and applies the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Working Group;
and

That the GSA General Council requests that the Chancellor, as soon as possible but
not later than the first day of Winter Quarter 2002, inform the Campus Elections
Commission that he will not authorize any campus-wide elections overseen by the
Campus Elections Commission until such time as the CEC reviews and applies the
recommendations of the Ad Hoc Working Group

That the GSA General Council requests that the Chancellor immediately convene the
Campus Regulations Committee with instructions to implement the
recommendations of the Ad Hoc Working Group in the language of Chapter VI of the
Campus Regulations Applying to Campus Activities, Organizations, and Students;
and

That the GSA General Council recommends that any mandatory student fee ballot
initiatives intended to be held during the 2001-2002 academic year be submitted to
AS and GSA for possible inclusion in the Spring ballots of the AS and the GSA, and
that this practice continue indefinitely pending revision of CEC guidelines according
to the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Working Group; and

That in the event the Chancellor authorizes any campus-wide elections prior to the
CEC’s having applied the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Working Group with
immediate effect, the GSA General Council shall:

1. Prohibit the GSA from participating in any campus-wide
elections process overseen by the Campus Elections
Commission, including but limited to providing electronic
polling or official election turnout results;

2. Authorize the GSA Executive Committee to pursue all political
and legal avenues, both at UCSB and beyond the campus, by
which to preserve graduate students’ voting rights.

After a short break during which representatives reviewed the proposed resolution,
debate resumed on the substance of the resolution.

Shawn addressed concerns about the impact of withdrawing from the 2002
campuswide elections, noting that issues like the Women's Center could still be
voted upon.





I Discussion Items

Mark from Anthropology recommended changes in the resolution to allow for more
input from graduate students before any decision to participate is made. He
suggested that the language be changed to read

That in the event the Chancellor authorizes any campus-wide elections
prior to the CEC’s having applied the recommendations of the Ad Hoc
Working Group with immediate effect, the GSA General Council shall
reserve the right to:

4. P prohibit the GSA from participating in any campus-wide elections process overseen
by the Campus Elections Commission, including but limited to providing electronic
polling or official election turnout results.;

Yonie suggested that the CEC might not have had the ability to approve the Working
Group's recommendations during the short time frame from the end of November to
the end of the quarter.

John Corbett noted that postponing a referendum gives the GSA maximum flexibility
and still makes an important statement of intent.

Kathy and Soomin both suggest that the failure to immediately enact reforms does
not amount to malicious intent or an outright refusal to enact reforms.

Alan said that the CEC had had plenty of time to enact the reforms if it so chose.

Motion to delete last paragraph of resolution moved by Jessica and seconded by
John:

Accepted as friendly amendment.

Motion to vote of the revised language of the resolution moved by Sabrina for
Political Science and seconded by Kathy.

Resolution adopted by voice vote with three abstentions.

A. GSHIP Revisions for 2002-2003

1. Alan Levy, representative of the Graduate Student Health Insurance Plan Committee, said he
was looking for final comments on possible improvements for next year, such as improving the
dental program. He noted that last year they passed a chiropractor benefit.

2. Shawn noted the possibility of replacing the current insurance broker due to problems
encountered by other campuses.

3. Mark from Anthropology inquired about the eye program. Alan explained Dr. Bowers's
opposition to it.

4. Yonie noted that UCSB has lower insurance costs because of GSHIP coverage.

5. Sarah Battersby noted that there is still an open position on GSHIP.

B. Upcoming GSA Lock-In Fee Votes

1. Shawn noted that he favors discussion of prioritizing lock-in fee increases and being more
focused.

C. GSA Constitution Revision

No discussion on this issue took place.

1. Information Items

A. Information Items was moved behind Discussion Items due to time demands. Motioned by Edward,
seconded by Alan Levy.
B. GSA Issues Agenda 2001-2002

Due to time constraints, Shawn asked the Council to examine the GSA Issues Agenda and raise any
objections. No objections were raised.





C. Officer Reports
1. Edward mentioned that he still needs someone from Isla Vista to serve on IVPAC.
1I. Adjournment
A. The meeting was adjourned at 8:25pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John Corbett

Press Secretary






GSA General Council Meeting Minutes

February 6, 2002

The meeting was called to order at 6:13 pm.

Approval of Agenda

Agenda for the meeting was approved. Edward Collins moved, and Kathy Meyer
seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes from the January 9, 2002, meeting were approved. Edward moved, and
Kathy seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Graduate Division

Shaina Walter, Internal Vice-President of Associated Students, requested that
interested graduate students meet the candidates for Executive Director. She
mentioned that there will be several public interviews in the AS conference room.

Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, announced that a Tax and
Loan Consolidated Resources Workshop would be held on Friday, February 8, in
order to help direct graduate students to information and resources pertaining to
the taxation of fellowships, assistantships, and loan consolidation. She requested
that students provide feedback on usefulness of the workshop. McMahon also
mentioned that a lottery would be held for on-campus housing for continuing
graduate students. She encouraged participation, especially in light of the
designation of one of the new Manzanita buildings as being reserved for graduate
students. McMahon reminded graduate students that there are still available
fellowships for continuing students, and that they are listed on the Graduate
Division website at
http://www.graddiv.ucsb.edu/academic/handbook/financial/continue.shtml.
Finally, she observed that with the slowing economy, UCSB expects to see an
increase in the number of applications for graduate programs -- perhaps over
6,000 applications for Fall Quarter 2002.

Vox Populi

Jeff Onsted of Geography announced the formation of a running club for all
interested graduate students.

Yonie Harris, Dean of Students and interim advisor to the GSA from the Office of
Student Life, announced that booklets were to be sent out in about a week's time
dealing with issues regarding distressed students. The booklets would deal with





how to handle student problems ranging from depression to victims of hate
crimes.

Sarah Thibodeaux, Chair of the Campus Elections Committee, expressed her
intentions of working closely with the GSA. She requested graduate students feel
free to provide feedback on the elections process.

Campus Resources

Gene Lucas, Chair of the Chancellor's Special Advisory Committee on Parking,
gave a presentation to the GSA General Council on current and future issues
regarding parking on campus. He said the Committee had met eight times to date
since November 2001, plus a one-day retreat, in order to comprehensively review
campus plans and parking and transportation operations, including the upcoming
Lot 10 structure.

As part of his presentation, Lucas explained that the campus needs to add
buildings to catch up with past enrollment increases. Expected growth in summer
session enrollment will generate the need for new faculty and staff. 500,000 ft? of
assignable space still remains out of the original 1,200,000 ft* approved under the
1989 Long Range Development Plan (LRDP). Much of the available space on the
main campus is located on the sites of current parking lots.

Lucas outlined three possible locations for new buildings:

1) The remaining open space on campus
2) Current single- or two-story buildings
3) Parking lots

After discussing the relative merits of each of the three choices, Lucas discussed
in detail the impact of constructing new buildings on current parking lots.

Parking spaces lost to building projects will need to be replaced by the
construction of new parking structures. Over the course of five years, nearly 1100
spaces will be lost to projects such as the Student Resources Building, New
Academic Building, and the California NanoSystems Institute. Parking structures
are not only more expensive than regular surface parking -- they also need to be
financially self-supporting. Financing will need to be found, either by increasing
fees or finding outside sources of funding.

Lucas discussed several models projecting parking supply and demand into the
future. He noted that in addition to parking structures, on-campus B spaces could
be converted into A/S spaces to increase supply. On the side of reducing demand,
he presented various options, including the extension of San Clemente housing
into Storke Field, a more aggressive Transportation Alternatives Program,
charging for night/weekend parking, and banning daily permits for students
within a two-mile radius of the campus.





At the conclusion of his presentation, Lucas opened the floor to questions.

Several students raised questions about the viability of implementing a proposed
bike permit program. Shawn Landres noted that students already pay lock-ins for
bus and bike fees.

Edward raised the issue of funding for bus passes. Martha Levy, Director of
Capital Development, said that an increasing level of bus ridership would result in
an increase in student lock-in fees.

Mark Schuller of Anthropology asked how encompassing the two-mile ban on
parking would be. Lucas responded there would not be a revocation of graduate
employee parking privileges.

Jeff Onsted of Geography asked about the students who currently drive from Isla
Vista. Lucas replied that he didn't believe that a two-mile restriction would make
a significant transportation impact, but that it could have an effect on revenues.

Mark queried about the increased emphasis on carpooling and carpool permits,
but Lucas noted that current software for implementing a significant carpool
program is prohibitively expensive.

Another student asked about satellite parking options. Lucas explained that there
is a possibility of utilizing a transit shuttle from potential parking lots near the
big-box shopping center in Goleta to campus. He also raised the option of a new
east campus bus stop. Lucas conceded that the high cost of operating a shuttle is
problematic.

In response to the proposal for nighttime parking fees, Edward raised an objection
to nighttime students having to finance daytime demand. Mark suggested that
grad student income be raised to pay for the fee increases. Another student
brought up concerns about the safety of biking to school at night. Alan
commented that excessive parking restrictions could produce the unintended cost
of forcing students to remain on campus for an additional quarter before getting
their degrees.





VI.

VII.

Information Items

A. Committee Reports

Alan said that Cynthia Bowers, Director of Student Health Services, will
refer students to eye clinics. Such visits will be charged as primary care
visits. He requested any feedback on the dental policy proposals.

Officer Reports

Shawn noted that although there has been a lack of progress with the Campus
Elections Committee on reforms, relations with the GSA are not bad. He
also said that the Chancellor's Coordinating Committee on Year Round
Enrollment has told him that there are no plans for year-round enroliment for
graduate students.

Soomin Chun requested information on what services each department is
offering to its graduate students.

Edward encouraged graduate students to vote in this spring's elections.

Kathy sought reports from stipended committee members and solicited
funding requests for organizational activities.

John Corbett requested email addresses from all departmental representatives
that currently are not receiving email announcements from the GSA.

Action Items

A. Committee Appointments/Confirmations

Edward announced Brian Brown as the GSA representative on IVPAC. Alan
moved, and Kathy seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Budget

No items were voted on.





VIII. Discussion Items
A. Proposals for GSA Lock-in Fee Ballot Questions
1. Student Health Service -- $4.00/student/quarter

No formal presentation given. Shawn noted that the proposed $4.00 fee
will buy out summer fees at Student Health Services. He went on to
discuss at length the background of the lock-in fee vote as it related to the
dispute with the Campus Elections Committee, and that the Multicultural
Center and Women's Center were most responsive in consultations.
Sports and Recreation was unresponsive in coming to the GSA in
requesting funds, Shawn continued, and hence there is no graduate vote
concerning their lock-in fee proposal for Spring 2002,

2. Women's Center -- $1.75/student/quarter
Presentation given in January 9, 2002, meeting.
3. Multicultural Center -- $1.75/student/quarter

Zaveeni Khan-Marcus, Director, and Viviana Marsano, Associate
Director of the Multicultural Center, spoke to the General Council in
favor of the proposed $1.75 lock-in fee increase. They outlined the
current services that the Multicultural Center provides, including a
program assisting students in setting up multicultural events, a place of
socialization, and co-sponsorship of graduate events. They explained that
the lock-in fee increase will enable the Multicultural Center to expand its
services to graduate students.

Shawn briefly explained the split ballot situation occurring this spring
due to the ongoing difficulties with the Campus Election Commission.

Alan observed that a lock-in fee of $0.75 already exists, while another
student asked what impact a failure to pass the fee would have on the
Center. Khan-Marcus and Marsano explained that a negative vote would
prevent the Center from expanding its services. Soomin thought that
graduate students might wind up voting against a fee that they could
benefit from. Shawn proposed that the GSA could actively endorse a
lock-in fee increase to avoid the impression that graduate students were
tagging on to benefit from undergraduate support.

In a related point, Yonie noted that only the Sports and Recreation lock-
in fee will be for undergraduates only this spring.





4. Disabled Students Program -- $1.75/student/quarter

Jeremy Johansen of Mechanical Engineering spoke on behalf of the
Disabled Students Program and a proposed lock-in fee increase.
Johansen noted that although graduate students receive a disproportionate
amount of services from the DSP, currently only undergraduate students
pay fees for the program.

Alan asked how the proposed lock-in fee would offset the DSP's
operating deficits. Shawn noted that while undergraduate students pay
$1.75/student/quarter, graduate students currently pay no fees to the DSP.
He feels that the DSP could benefit from a $1.00 graduate lock-in fee, but
encouraged consideration of the $1.75 fee as well to achieve parity with
undergraduate contributions.

Yonie noted that the DSP's financial problems stem from the fact that it
cannot refuse service to students, regardless of who is paying lock-in
fees, which can result in significant operating deficits.

5. Night/Weekend Parking Buyout

Shawn explained some of the background of the night and weekend
parking issue. He noted that if any one group receives parking benefits,
union requirements guarantee equal benefits for all groups. He felt that
$8 to $15/student/quarter was the probable range of lock-in fees that
could buy out imposed night and weekend parking fees, and would be far
more attractive that have to purchase permits for the same.

Mark brought up the issue of fair use of parking facilities, and whether
differential permit charges would be viable. Shawn and Edward
expressed their opposition to the concept.

An informal poll of the students present showed opposition to the fee
proposal as offered.

Shawn asked the representatives to go to their departments and find out
what comments come up with regard to the night and weekend parking
issue. Mark supported a formal survey of opinions, but Shawn responded
that such a survey may act to constrict the range of responses to the fee
proposal.





XI.

Resignation of Kelly T. Pollock, Vice President for Academic Affairs,
effective 8 February 2002

Kelly briefly spoke to the General Council, thanking the GSA for her
experience with the organization. Shawn proposed paying Kelly a pro-rated
stipend for her services this quarter amounting to half the normal stipend. No
objections were raised.

Election of new Vice President for Academic Affairs

Shawn briefly announced that he would be issuing a call for a new Vice
President for Academic Affairs, especially to run the Teaching Assistant
Awards program. He encouraged students to run for the open position.

Upcoming Vacancy in System Administrator Position

Shawn noted that Joseph Maher, the current System Administrator, was one
of the best employees for the dollar the GSA has ever had. Shawn proposed
that the position be converted into a work-study position, and was unwilling
to restrict the position to graduate students only.

GSA Constitution Revision

Shawn observed that, as the proposed constitutional changes will be on the
ballot in March, it was important that any comments, recommendations, or
suggestions for changes be made promptly so that they can be properly
considered.

Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:16 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John Corbett
GSA Press Secretary






GSA General Council Meeting Minutes

January 9, 2002

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm.

Approval of Agenda

Agenda for the meeting was approved. Alan Levy moved, and Kathy seconded.
Adopted by unanimous consent.

Special Topic: The Legal and Political Environment in the United States for
International Students and Scholars

The Honorable Congresswoman Lois Capps was introduced at 6:07 pm and
proceeded to speak about the impact of the events of September 11, 2001, on
international graduate students. Ms. Capps emphasized the important contributions
that international students and scholars make to the UCSB campus and community,
and that the moratorium on student visas has ended. Before taking questions, Ms.
Capps also spoke about the recently passed education bill, which she supported, along
with efforts to enact legislation dealing with the nursing shortage. The floor was then
opened for questions.

Dr. Mary Jacob, Director of the UCSB Office of International Students and Scholars,
praised Ms. Capps for her efforts to expedite issues with the INS.

The issue of immigration curbs, such as those proposed by Senator Diane Feinstein,
was discussed, as was the recently-passed anti-terrorism bill, the latter which Ms.
Capps voted for.

Several graduate students shared their experiences with customs and the INS in the
post-September 11 environment. One student noted that he had been turned away
from the United States because he possessed Islamic textbooks. Another student
claimed he was told to leave the country until the situation had “settled.” Several
students mentioned being racially profiled or having difficulty entering the United
States from Canada and Mexico.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes from December 5, 2001, meeting were approved. Kelly Pollock moved, and
Kathy Meyer seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.





VI.

Graduate Division

Dr. Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of the UCSB Graduate Division, noted that
Graduate Student Appreciation Week would begin on Monday, February 4. She
requested that students help out in any way that they could, including speaking with
visiting students. She also noted that applications for continuing fellowships were
being accepted during Winter Quarter. In addition, Dr. McMahon mentioned that
there might be new single graduate student rooms available in the new Manzanita
development, and she encouraged students to visit the Housing and Residential
Services homepage at http://www.housing.ucsb.edu/ for more information.

Alex Cook, Graduate Funding Peer Advisor of Graduate Division, explained that her
role was to help graduate students find extramural funding. Some of her activities
include assisting students in utilizing UCSB-only funding websites and running
workshops to help students locate sources of funding. She noted that the Social
Science listserv gives up to seven awards weekly in the humanities and the social
sciences. Kathy Meyer added that it was a good time to visit Alex because funding
often needs to be secured in the fall of the year before it is needed. Alex can be
contacted at fundingpeer@graddiv.ucsb.edu.

VVox Populi

Sarah Battersby spoke about furniture ergonomics pursuant to concerns raised during
the December meeting of the GSA General Council. She requested that students
speak with their departmental chairs to get a sense of where the departments stand on
this issue.

Sarah also requested an informal vote on the preference between a proposed beer-
tasting event versus a wine-tasting event. The beer-tasting event was preferred by a
majority of responding students present.

Edward Collins noted that a replacement member of IVPAC was still needed. Mark
Schuller from Anthropology said that he might be able to procure a volunteer.

Information Items
A. Committee Reports

Alan Levy of the Campus Elections Committee said that there was no quorum at
the most recent meeting of the CEC. He reported that the CEC would go through
the GSA to secure lock-in fees instead of through a campuswide vote. Alan noted
that the CEC will use guidelines similar to those employed for the 2001 elections,
even though this is viewed unfavorably by the GSA.





VII.

VIII.

Shawn Landres briefly noted that he had been in contact with other committees to
explain the rationale behind the resolution adopted in the December meeting of
the GSA General Council. He said that the response has been positive, especially
from the Women’s Center.

Officer Reports

No additional statements were made beyond the submitted reports.

Action Items

A.

Committee Appointments/Nominations

Shawn noted that Angela Whipple is the newest member of the Chancellor's
Advisory Committee on the Status of Women, correcting an error which had
appeared on the GSA website.

Budget

No issues were raised.

Discussion Items

A

GSHIP Revisions for 2002-2003

Alan Levy, member of the Graduate Student Health Insurance Plan Committee,
noted that discussions on upcoming revisions are still incomplete, and that he is
seeking feedback on what students want covered for 2002-2003. He explained
that the main options under consideration were: 1) Simplification of prescription
benefits, 2) Continued enhancement of the dental program for non-routine work,
and 3) Coverage for eyeglasses and eye checkups.

Mark Schuller and Soomin Chun both queried about international GSHIP
coverage. Alan said that coverage exists, but access to it is a problem.

Other issues raised during the discussion included whether there was a cap on co-
payments, what kinds of orthotics are covered, availability of medical history
summaries, and the suggestion of GSHIP survey forms.

Alan explained that any complaints about particular GSHIP issues should be
routed through John Corbett.





B. Upcoming GSA Lock-In Fee Votes

Shawn observed that there would be several lock-in fee requests on the 2002
ballot, including those for the Women’s Center, the Disabled Students Program,
and the Multicultural Center. He explained that this was due in part to inevitable
budget cuts coming soon, and that fees to offset such cuts invariably fall on the
students.

Dee Acker, Director of the Women’s Center, spoke in support of the proposed
lock-in fee for the Women’s Center. She outlined many programs that have
helped graduate students, including sexual harassment and rape prevention
programs, plus activities for non-traditional students and an art center. The lock-
in fee could provide for new programs, including child care grants, symposium
opportunities, and dissertation support. The proposed lock-in fee increase is
$1.75 per student per quarter.

Stacey Shears, Director of the Resource Center for Sexual and Gender Diversity,
raised the possibility that lock-in fee monies could be used to provide more
information on same-sex partnerships and issues surrounding coming out.
Karl Bryant from Sociology pointed out that the Women’s Center has programs
that benefit men as well as women. Several other students also spoke in support
of the Women’s Center’s lock-in fee.
Soomin noted that 100% of the lock-in fees are covered for TAs.

C. GSA Constitution Revision
Shawn noted that the new GSA constitution will be voted on in the March
elections, but it was not yet clear how exactly it would be proposed. To appear on
the ballot, it would have to be written in some votable form by March.

IX.  Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John Corbett
GSA Press Secretary






GSA General Council Meeting Minutes

March 6, 2002

The meeting was called to order at 6:05 pm.

Approval of Agenda

Agenda for the meeting was approved. Edward Collins moved, and Mark
Schuller seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Approval of Minutes

Minutes from the February 6, 2002, meeting were approved. Edward moved, and
Sarah Battersby seconded. Adopted by unanimous consent.

Graduate Division

Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, made several
announcements and requests. She announced that the Grad News newspaper is on
the web at http://www.graddiv.ucsb.edu/gradnews. She also said that she was
seeking a speaker for commencement. Shawn Landres noted that two people
were needed for the committee that will make the selection.

McMahon also announced the Louis and Winifred Lancaster Dissertation
Competition, which is offering awards to the best dissertation in the Social
Science and Mathematical/Physical Sciences/Engineering fields.

McMahon mentioned that partial fee fellowships will be made available to grad
students in Summer 2002 for coursework that will assist the timely completion of
their degree. For more information, please see
http://www.graddiv.ucsb.edu/financial/summer/docs/Complete_Info.doc.

Lastly, McMahon noted that graduate students will be asked to participate in a
national survey, and made a final call for fellowships for continuing graduate
students.

Vox Populi

Stu Levenbach of Marine Biology voiced concern over the high proposed cost of
renting a room in the San Clemente project, such as $892 per month for a room in
a two-bedroom apartment. Shawn noted that the Office of the President was
shocked by the figures presented. Although the proposed rates are said to be
some fifteen percent below market value, Edward Collins noted that such high
costs of living tend to make UCSB less competitive than other universities in
attracting and retaining students. Shawn said that during a meeting with the





VI.

Chancellor the idea of pegging stipends at three times housing costs was floated
in order to increase competitiveness.

Campus Resources

Patrick McNulty, Associate Registrar of Systems Operation & Development at
the Office of the Registrar, spoke briefly about tax benefits available to graduate
students. Although McNulty made it clear that his advice and opinions could not
be construed as expert in nature, he outlined the basic features of such legislation
as the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 and programs such as the Hope and Lifetime
Learning Credits.

Significant questions were raised about the definitions of such concepts as "gift
aid" and payments "on your behalf," but McNulty was unable to elaborate further.
Several grad students recommended visiting the IRS website at
http://www.irs.gov/ for more information and downloadable literature and

documents.

Information Items

A.

Committee Reports

Alan Levy, mentioned that the next meeting of GSHIP committee will have
a menu of program offerings to choose from. He said that Dr. Cynthia
Bowers of Student Health Services will keep all services open during the
summer, although eye and dental services will be provided during a
schedule of reduced hours. No physical therapy or orthotics will be
available on site.

Officer Reports

Shawn said that the Chancellor's Special Advisory Committee on Parking is
making progress, and discussions favor the implementation of night and
weekend parking fees starting in Fall 2002. He also noted with concern that
the Chancellor's Coordinating Committee on Year Round Enrollment was
not demonstrating interest in enrolling grad students for summer quarter
except as teaching assistants.

Jonathan Pearl of Music asked about summer incentives for graduate
students to teach, to which Shawn responded that the UAW-UC agreement
bans any changes to the TA environment during negotiations. Shawn
advocated contacting either the UAW or UC, as the GSA was not able to
take a position on the matter for legal reasons. Shawn talked about the issue
of summer classes affecting teachers with whom TAs work during other
quarters, and supported the creation of a department to match grad students
with advisors to cover each quarter that grad students attend UCSB. Mary





McMahon encouraged students to find funding during summer if it works to
their advantage, a process of “thinking creatively,” as she termed it. Shawn
noted that the issue of summer classes is another factor affecting the overall
competitiveness of UCSB among potential graduate students.

Edward spoke about several items, including systemwide petitions and
committees regarding such issues as copyright protection for works
produced by graduate students. He also mentioned that IVPAC was holding
a weeklong set of meetings to figure out the issues that are most important
to Isla Vista - either students or businesses will dominate the agenda.

Sarah mentioned the selection of a new Vice Chancellor for Admininstrative
Services, and that the parking committee had rescheduled its meeting for
April.

Soomin noted that she had worked with Shawn on finding ways to improve
Counseling and Career Services to make it more effective for graduate
students. Shawn lamented that graduate students are largely unaware of
many of the services that CCS provides.

VII. Old Business and Action Items

A

Election of New Vice President for Academic Affairs

Due to the need to fill the position of Vice President for Academic Affairs
with all expediency, and as no students were nominated, Shawn requested to
the General Council that the Executive Council be empowered to appoint
someone. Roger Roybal of Mathematics moved, and John Corbett
seconded. An amendment declaring failure to appoint a VP for Academic
Affairs was moved by Shawn and seconded by John.

Committee Appointments/Confirmations

No appointments or confirmations were made.

Budget

1. Spanish & Lusophone Graduate Student Conference

Approval for funding the Spanish & Lusophone Conference was moved
by Edward and seconded by Sarah.





2. Conversion of System Administrator Position to work-study and
removal of graduate student preferential hiring.

Shawn spoke about the possibility of having the roommate of Joseph
Maher (the current System Administrator) manage the online election
of GSA officers at a rate of $40 per hour for ten hours. Edward moved
for such an arrangement and Sarah seconded.

Jonathan Pearl noted that he was concerned about the total number of
hours that the prospective hire would be allotted. Shawn remarked that
it would be tied to the job description.

John suggested that the hire should be required to complete the job
along the stipulated guidelines or not be eligible for pay. John moved
and Edward seconded.

Proposal to Amend the GSA Constitution

Mark Schuller asked about the meaning of Article 1X, Section (a). Shawn
explained that it was desired to be required to request approval from the
General Council for every interpretation of the proposed Constitution. Alan
Levy motioned to approve a change from "3/4" to "2/3" in Article IX,
Section (a). Edward seconded.

Benjamin Wolkow of Classics asked about the meaning of Article 11,
Section (g), in which the GSA Assembly would be empowered to remove a
GSA officer or assembly member. Alan Levy of the Constitution
Committee replied that it was retained from the current constitution to
prevent gridlock by assembly members or officers that attempted to tie up
proceedings.

Shawn and Alan spoke briefly about the merits of the proposed constitution,
especially with regard to how it will result in more stringent procedures for
passing items in general elections.

Alan proposed a series of changes to the proposed constitution to smooth
out its language. He requested that the word "be™ be deleted from Article 3,
Section (e)(1); that "an" be substituted for "a" in Article 3, Section (e)(4);
and that the language in Article 11, Section (d)(3) be changed to read "serve
a term of one year." The proposed language was passed by a vote of 19
yeas, 0 nays, and 0 abstentions.

Alan motioned to change the bylaws of the current constitution at the next
meeting of the General Council (April 3) so that an election over the
adoption of the proposed constitution can be held. Edward seconded.





E. Proposals for GSA Lock-in Fee Ballot Questions

1.

Night & Weekend Parking: $3.33/student/quarter (FWS only) 2002-03
and 2003-04; $4.00/student/quarter (FWS only) 2004-05 and 2005-06

Shawn discussed the Gene Lucas letter included in the packet
distributed to the General Council. He then referred students to the
proposed language for the ballot issue. He proposed that Night and
Weekend Parking should be handled in a matter similar to GSHIP --
namely that it should be applicable to all students regardless of who
uses it, making it acceptable to the Chancellor. He then walked the
Council through the potential charges associated with a Night and
Weekend Parking program, along with the need for increased security
from non-parking sources. He noted that some members of the
Chancellor's Committee were opposed to such a buyout and favored
instead the implementation of a system charging fees on demand.

Karen Blair of Geology asked about how a Night and Weekend Parking
program would be enforced. Shawn and Martha Levy, Director of
Capital Development, indicated that permits would be necessary but at
no additional charge should the program be bought out.

Jonathan Pearl of Music asked about how useful existing data was in
predicting the impact of such a program. Shawn noted that there is
some data available on permit types and times at which certain parking
facilities are utilized. He also mentioned the possibility of separate
stickers for graduate and undergraduate students.

Martha observed that it was not yet clear that there had been a
recommendation regarding Night and Weekend Parking. Having said
that, she mentioned that it was important to make the program work for
students. Shawn responded that the buyout was the best option on the
table, saying that "it doesn't get any better than this."

Kurt Anderson asked about what sort of prices would be charged to
non-permit holders. Martha said that $1 per night could be charged for
event parking, and that weekend rates had not yet even been
determined. Shawn added that he felt there was "a ton of money™" to be
had from event parking.

Mark Schuller inquired as to whether event fees and Night and
Weekend Parking were being considered as separate charges from one
another. Shawn and Martha responded that they were indeed being
considered as separate charges.





Alan Levy asked whether daytime rates would change; Martha replied
that they would not under the proposed plan.

Shawn noted that graduate students would have little grounds for
complaint if a buyout were voted down in the upcoming election.

Edward expressed concern about charging Night and Weekend Parking
fees, pointing out that there exists the possibility that such fees could
drive away undergraduate students and undercut the profitability of the
program. Shawn later noted that undergraduates were prevented from
participating in a buyout due to a self-imposed moratorium on lock-in
fees.

Brook Vick of Psychology inquired about the possible rates per quarter
if permits were sold individually, with Shawn and Martha expressing
doubt that they would be less than $10.

John asked whether parking enforcement would continue for the
duration of the night, and if not, when it would cease. Shawn
responded that enforcement would cease after 10 pm.

Jonathan suggested the possibility of a Transportation Alternatives
Program (TAP) "ten-pack" for the quarter to encourage occasional use
of parking facilities during the night and weekend.

Alan moved to place the question on the ballot, with John seconding.
The proposal was passed by a vote of 18 yeas, 0 nays, and 1 abstention.
Disabled Students Program: $1.00/student/quarter

Shawn outlined recommendations for DSP along with several minor
changes in language.

John moved to place the question on the ballot, with Sabrina from
Political Science seconding.

The proposal was passed by a vote of 20 yeas, 0 nays, and 0
abstentions.

Multicultural Center: $1.75/student/quarter ($1.00 summer?)
Shawn briefly outlined the lock-in fee proposal, and noted that he has

letters of intent for services to be provided by the Multicultural Center
as result of fees ensuing from approval of this proposal.





Mark questioned who would be paying the $1.00 fee during the
summer. Shawn explained that the fee would only be paid by those
registering for summer classes, and that the fee would be no more than
$1.00.

Several students raised questions about what services were actually
being promised, such as an "additional coffee hour" and additional
programs for children. Alan noted that the MCC is attempting to
become more "child-friendly."

Mark felt that the concerns raised by the General Council over the
MCC lock-in provisions would be best addressed with the generation of
a voter guide at the April meeting of the General Council.

Mark moved to place the question on the ballot, with Edward
seconding.

The proposal was passed by a vote of 20 yeas, 0 nays, and 0
abstentions.

Women's Center: $1.75/student/quarter ($1.00 summer)
Shawn spoke briefly in favor of the proposal.

Edward moved to place the question on the ballot, with Mark
seconding.

The proposal was passed by a vote of 20 yeas, 0 nays, and 0
abstentions.

Student Health Service: $4.00/student/quarter (FWS only)
Shawn briefly revisited this proposal's merits.

Edward moved to place the question on the ballot, with Jonathan
seconding.

The proposal was passed by a vote of 19 yeas, 0 nays, and 1 abstention.





VIII. New Business and Discussion Items

A

Parking Committee recommendation to suspend planning on SRB

Shawn explained the situation to the General Council. He explained that the
expansion of the Student Resources Building (SRB) would lead to even
more consumption of parking spaces than was originally envisioned. As a
result, the Chancellor's Committee has suspended planning on the SRB until
this situation can be worked out.

Martha Levy noted that the proposed bike fee had been dropped as
unpopular and unworkable, and state funding has also been rejected. She
explained that an "infrastructure tax" might be implemented at UCSB to pay
for additional parking facilities.

Shawn took the time to explain the concept of "parking replacement” and
how the infrastructure tax would apply to all campus projects.

Edward and John both asked how could such a charge be applied if the state
doesn't want to pay for it. Martha noted that such a tax could be hidden in
such a way as to not be a direct linkage to parking.

Mark requested clarification on the financing aspect, and then moved to take
the position that the proposed childcare portion of the SRB be removed from
current parking lots. Jeff Onsted of Geography seconded.

The question was passed by a vote of 16 yeas, 0 nays, and 4 abstentions.

Nominations and Elections for 2002-03 GSA Officer positions

Shawn briefly noted that it was necessary to start the nominations process
for the 2002-03 year.

GSA Accounting and Payroll System: Proposal to transfer accounts out of
OSL

No discussion was held on this matter.

IX.  Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 pm.

Respectfully

John Corbett
GSA Press S

submitted,

ecretary






Minutes of the GSA Assembly

May 15, 2002

The meeting was called to order at 5:10 pm.

VI.

VII.

Approval of Agenda

The meeting agenda was approved. Edward Collins so moved, and Jonathan
Pearl seconded. Approved by unanimous consent.

A motion was made to call the roll of those in attendance to determine if a
guorum was present. John Corbett seconded. John called the roll (the full
attendance list can be found on page 11).
Approval of Minutes of GSA Assembly meeting of May 1, 2002
Edward so moved to approve the minutes of the previous meeting of the GSA
Assembly, and Sarah Woodward of Dramatic Arts seconded. Approved by
unanimous consent.
Announcements from Graduate Division
No announcements were offered from Graduate Division.
Vox Populi
No issues were raised from the floor.
Information Items
No items were scheduled on the agenda or raised from the floor.
Discussion Items
No items were scheduled on the agenda or raised from the floor.
Action Items
A. Appointment of Member of GSA Officer Elections Committee
Shawn announced the resignation of Soomin Chun from the Elections
Committee. Edward moved to permit the GSA Executive Committee to

appoint the third member of the Elections Committee. Jonathan seconded.
Approved by unanimous consent.





Election of Vice President — External Affairs

Edward moved to declare nominations for Vice President — External Affairs
to be closed, with Karen Blair of Geological Sciences seconding. Approved
by unanimous consent.

Amendments to GSA Assembly By-laws

Shawn Landres briefly outlined the proposed amendments to the GSA
Assembly as shown in the meeting packet. Edward moved to put the
amendments on the table, with Karen seconding.

Kurt Anderson of Marine Biology suggested that items to be voted on by
GSA Assembly Members be presented in advance.

Holly Grether of Religious Studies suggested that multiple options for
GSHIP be presented for a vote. Dr. Cynthia Bowers, Director of the Student
Health Service, explained that presenting multiple GSHIP options would be
extremely complicated to create and would not be as flexible as the menu
items as currently presented to the GSA.

Shawn paused briefly to introduce various officials present at the meeting.

Jonathan moved that Article XII, Section B(5) regarding GSHIP be
rewritten so that packages could only be passed by the GSA Assembly with
three-fifths approval. If the GSA Assembly failed to achieve a three-fifths
margin, Jonathan's motion continued, the package would be presented to the
entire GSA membership for a vote. Kurt Anderson seconded.

Charles Li, Dean of Graduate Division, briefly commented that passage of
GSHIP items that would dramatically increase the 2002-03 premium would
have dire consequences on administrative expenses. Shawn suggested that
such comments be withheld until debate on the actual menu items
commenced.

Jessica Winston, Past President of the GSA, expressed her concern that GSA
Assembly Members have not adequately communicated their knowledge
about pending issues with graduate students over the course of the year. She
asked Jonathan what GSHIP package would actually be presented to the
graduate student body. Jonathan responded that the option that gets the
most votes from the GSA Assembly should be presented to graduate
students for a vote. Holly expressed her support for student consent.





Mark Schuller of Anthropology said that the information regarding the
GSHIP package proposals should have been sent out earlier. Alan agreed
that in the future the approval process should be changed, but that it was too
late to do so at this juncture.

Jonathan suggested as a friendly amendment to the motion that the three-
fifths rule go into effect on May 16, 2002.

Sabrina Pinnell of Political Science expressed displeasure at the extremely
confidential nature of the GSHIP proposals.

Shawn asked Jonathan to postpone the motion until the next meeting.
Jonathan agreed, and the motion was withdrawn.

Shawn asked that Edward's motion putting the amendments to the by-laws
on the table be voted on. An objection to consent was raised. The motion
was approved by a vote of twenty-nine yeas, zero nays, and four abstentions.

Consideration of GSHIP coverage for the 2002-2003 academic year

Shawn clarified where the situation currently stood. He conceded that he
had made an error of judgement at the May 1, 2002, meeting in allowing
non-Assembly Members to vote on the GSHIP package and its various
elements before being approved as a package by the Assembly. He
explained that there would be two votes at the present meeting. The first
would be for Assembly Members only, only then could non-Assembly
Members vote.

Shawn then explained to the meeting that the Assembly would first vote on
a provisional package as moved by the GSHIP Committee. The provisional
package contained the following items (moved and seconded by the GSA
Executive Committee):

2A) Adapt Physical Therapy benefit to 100% at Student Health/ 90%
in-network/ 70% out-of-network.

2B) Remove Post Surgical limitation for Student Health Charges.

3) Change notification (to Student Health) of treatment time limitation
from 72 hours to one working day.

4) Amend language under point three of the Prescription Drug benefit
to read: Filled on a day when the Student Health Services is not open.

5) Include pharmacy co-pays in the aggregation of the $3,000.00 stop
loss maximum.





6) Add Diabetic Self-Management and Education Program Benefit.

13B) Increase percentage of payment for Rx filled outside of 50 mile
radius from 50% to 100%. 50% discount on restorative dentistry.

Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, reiterated Charles
Li's previously-stated concern that an excessively large increase in GSHIP
for 2002-03 could restrict campus funding. She said that this could
jeopardize funding for such things as appointments, fellowships, teaching
assistantships, and research positions.

Alan Levy, member of the GSHIP Committee, explained that before
considering the provisional package as moved by the committee, the GSA
Assembly needed to approve a default package in case no agreement could
be reached on the series of items currently before the Assembly. Shawn
temporarily withdrew the provisional package for the purpose of permitting
a vote on the default package.

Alan then moved to approve the following no-cost GSHIP menu items as
the default package as required by the GSA by-laws:

2A) Adapt Physical Therapy benefit to 100% at Student Health/ 90%
in-network/ 70% out-of-network.

3) Change notification (to Student Health) of treatment time limitation
from 72 hours to one working day.

4) Amend language under point three of the Prescription Drug benefit
to read: Filled on a day when the Student Health Services is not open.

5) Include pharmacy co-pays in the aggregation of the $3,000.00 stop
loss maximum.

6) Add Diabetic Self-Management and Education Program Benefit.
Edward seconded. The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

Several students then raised the question of what happened to the package
constructed at the May 1 meeting. Shawn explained that the package as
tentatively approved had been tabled. Upon detecting significant confusion
from the various Assembly Members, Shawn proceeded to explain the
difference between postponing a motion (which preserved it) and tabling it
(which effectively killed it). Several students objected to this action, but
Shawn reminded the meeting that the minutes for the May 1 meeting had
already been approved with the "tabled” language in it.





Shawn then noted that the provisional GSHIP package was being placed
back on the table for a vote. Mark Schuller moved to consider the May 1
package, with Shawn ruling the motion out of order, as another motion was
already on the floor.

Mark then moved to introduce the following menu items:

12) Delete exclusion 19 (pertaining to treatment, surgery, drugs,
devices and/or supplies for sexual reassignment surgery) in its entirety.

14) Amend the increase in cost for students to decrease the dependent
rates by 10%.

Eve Shapiro of Sociology seconded.

Jessica Winston made an unfriendly motion to separate items 12 and 14,
with Edward seconding. An objection to consent was raised. The motion
was approved by a vote of twenty yeas, eight nays, and three abstentions.

Shawn then opened the floor for debate on Item 12, alternating between
statements supporting and opposing the item.

Mark proceeded to speak in favor of Item 12, which would provide GSHIP
coverage for the costs of sexual reassignment surgery. Mark then
introduced a letter submitted by himself and Karl Bryant of Sociology
(included in the packet) presenting arguments for Item 12 in a Q&A format.
Assembly Members were given a brief moment to examine the contents of
the letter.

Kurt Anderson then spoke in opposition to Item 12. He reiterated the
arguments made by Mr. Li and Ms. McMahon regarding the cost of the
proposed item and how it would impact funding for other campus programs.

A student in favor of Item 12 noted that if certain students did not get said
coverage, they would be unable to continue to attend UCSB.

Sabrina Pinnell of Political Science compared Item 12 to the scenario of a
student trying to get eye surgery. She noted that even if Item 12 passed, it
could still be eliminated in 2003-04, when UCSB bids for a new insurance
plan. Eve responded that even if only made available for one year, sexual
reassignment benefits are better than none at all.





Jessica inquired about the number of students that would be seeking such a
surgical treatment. Dr. Bowers responded that she thought about one or two
students from the entire student population were currently utilizing such a
treatment.

One student noted that students would need and use services provided under
Item 12. Another student responded that she was concerned about how it
would affect funding in her Biology Department.

Dr. Bowers interjected that sexual reassignment surgery treated a “credible
medical condition”. At the same time, she cautioned that a 30 to 50%
increase in the GSHIP premium could be expected for 2003-04, and that this
should be kept in mind when voting for items to place in the GSHIP
package.

Stu Levenbach of Marine Biology moved to call the question on Item 12 and
close debate. John seconded. An objection to consent was raised. The
motion was approved by a vote of twenty-five yeas, five nays, and three
abstentions. Debate on Item 12 was closed.

The Assembly then voted on Mark's motion to include Item 12 in the
provisional package. An objection to consent was raised. The motion was
defeated by a vote of eight yeas, nineteen nays, and three abstentions. Item
12 would not be included in the provisional GSHIP package.

In opening debate on Item 14, Shawn asked how many graduate students
have dependents covered by GSHIP. Dr. Bowers said that twelve spouses
and eight children are currently covered.

Mark then asked the Assembly Members as a whole whether they have
enough information to render an "intelligent” vote on Item 14. Several
students raised their hands, while many did not.

Mary McMahon noted that there were 180 spouses in the current graduate
population.

Dr. Bowers cautioned the Assembly Members that an immediate vote was
necessary, as the GSHIP insurance package as approved needed to be
published the next day.





Holly moved to amend Mark's motion on Item 14 to 50%, which would
have entailed a significant rise in the GSHIP premium. Roy Landstrom,
President of Renaissance Agencies, Inc., explained that the high premium
associated with extending dependent coverage was due to a phenomenon
known as "anti-selection,” where dependents would be induced to get
coverage because it would be better than other alternatives. This, in turn,
could generate demand far beyond current levels or coverage.

Several students concurred that other health care plans for dependents were
"pathetic”.

A student raised the point that the proposed increase to 50% on Item 14
would lead to a premium increase four times higher than what was discussed
for Item 12, noting that support for the 50% dependent rate was hypocritical
in nature.

Mark said that Item 14 was the most important issue for the students he
consulted with in Anthropology.

Jonathan moved to call a vote on Item 14 at 50%. Holly seconded. An
objection to consent was raised. The motion was defeated by a vote of seven
yeas, sixteen nays, and seven abstentions.

Jonathan next moved to call a vote on Item 14 at the 10% level. Sabrina
seconded. An objection to consent was raised. The motion was approved
by a vote of thirteen yeas, ten nays, and six abstentions. Debate on Item 14
was closed.

The Assembly then proceeded to address Mark's motion to include Item 14
in the provisional GSHIP package at 10%. An objection to consent was
raised. The motion resulted in a tie with a vote of twelve yeas, twelve nays,
and six abstentions. Shawn as chair elected to abstain, leaving the tie intact.
A revote was subsequently held, with the motion being approved with a vote
of thirteen yeas, twelve nays, and six abstentions.

Stu moved to hold a voice vote for Item 14, with acceptable responses being
"yes", "no", or "present”. Soomin seconded. Approved by unanimous
consent. The motion regarding Item 14 was passed by a vote of fourteen
yeas, thirteen nays, and four abstentions. Item 14 at 10% was included in

the provisional GSHIP package.





Included in the meeting packet was a proposal moved and seconded by the
GSA Executive Committee to introduce a $4.00 per student per quarter fee
to GSHIP "dedicated to reducing the cost of GSHIP to non-students”. Holly
proposed that this amount should be raised from $4.00 to $10.00 per student
per quarter, as Item 14 was passed at only 10%. Sarah Woodward
seconded.

When asked about the origin of the amendment, Alan Levy of the GSHIP
Committee explained that he had "dreamed it up" as a way of easing the
burden on dependents. When suggestions were made to consider the
amendment over the next few meetings, Shawn raised the concern that if a
vote on the amendment were postponed, it would appear more like a
potential lock-in fee. Dr. Bowers replied that either way, the amendment
could never be considered part of GSHIP.

Shawn decided to rule the amendment out of order because he determined it
to be a mandatory student lock-in fee, which can only be approved through a
referendum; thus the motion was unconstitutional. He then suggested the
possibility a motion to vote on it after the GSHIP package. He then
announced that the provisional plan, as currently amended, incorporated a
total premium increase of $27.50 on top of the mandatory 11% GSHIP
increase for 2002-03.

After Edward spoke briefly about salient points in the package as it was
currently constituted, Stu Levenbach declared that the premium associated
with the package was too high.

Karl Bryant of Sociology moved to reconsider the following item:

11) Amend Exclusion 19 to read: Treatment, surgery, drugs, devices
and/or the cost of sexual reassignment surgical procedures. (GSHIP
would then cover the costs associated with sexual reassignment
procedures except for the cost of the surgery itself.)

Eve Shapiro seconded. An objection to consent was raised. The motion
was defeated by a vote of seven yeas, twenty nays, and four abstentions.
Item 11 would not be included in the provisional GSHIP package.

Holly moved to reconsider Item 14, with Gina Valentino of English
seconding. An objection to consent was raised. The motion was defeated
by a vote of seven yeas, fifteen nays, and five abstentions. Item 14 would
remain in the provisional GSHIP package at 10%.

Sabrina moved to have a vote on the package as currently constituted by the
Assembly. Kurt seconded. An objection to consent was raised.





Kurt moved to hold a voice vote for the provisional GSHIP package as
amended, with acceptable responses being "yes", "no", or "present".
Edward seconded. Approved by unanimous consent. The motion regarding
the provisional package was passed by a vote of eighteen yeas, seven nays,
and five abstentions. The provisional GSHIP package, as amended, was

approved by the GSA Assembly.

Mark moved to have the provisional GSHIP package voted on by all GSA members
present, with Edward seconding. An objection to consent was raised. The motion was
defeated by a vote of nineteen yeas, thirty-two nays, and seven abstentions. The
provisional GSHIP package, as amended, was rejected by the GSA.

With the amended provisional package having been defeated by the general
GSA members, Shawn asked students that voted no reasons for their choice.

Holly said that the 10% dependent rate on Item 14 was so low that it was
essentially "anti-family".

Edward said that he felt that premium was simply too high.

Edward moved to pass a provisional GSHIP package, which included Items
2A, 3, 4,5, and 6. Jonathan seconded. An objection to consent was raised.

Stu moved to hold a voice vote for the provisional GSHIP package, with
acceptable responses being "yes", "'no", or "present”. Edward seconded.
Approved by unanimous consent. The motion regarding the provisional
package was passed by a vote of sixteen yeas, seven nays, and seven
abstentions. The provisional GSHIP package was approved by the GSA
Assembly.

Karen Blair moved to hold a vote on the provisional package by the GSA
members present. Holly seconded. An objection to consent was raised.
The motion passed by a vote of twenty-four yeas, twenty-two nays, and four
abstentions. The provisional GSHIP package, without amendments, was
approved by the GSA.

Holly moved to consider the $10.00 GSHIP amendment for the next
election, with Gina seconding.

Edward noted that the GSA would need a quorum at the meeting when the
vote on it would be held.





Holly moved to call a special meeting for such a purpose for 5:00pm,
Wednesday, May 22, 2002. Edward seconded. An objection to consent was
raised. The motion was defeated by a vote of four yeas, ten nays, and eight
abstentions.

Edward moved to create a committee to work with GSHIP for 2002-03.
Sarah Woodward second. Approved by unanimous consent.

Sarah moved to have the GSA give approval for the creation of the said
committee. Jonathan seconded. Approved by unanimous consent.

VIII.  Officer Reports and Financial Report
No reports were presented to the Assembly.
IX.  Adjournment

Jonathan moved to adjourn, with Sarah seconding. Approved by unanimous
consent. The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

John Corbett
GSA Vice President—Communications and Records





Department Representative Present
Anthropology Mark Schuller Yes
Art History Brian Dale No
Biochemistry/Molec. Biology | Stephanie Snyder Yes
Chemical Engineering Kevin Boulware Yes
Chemical Engineering Amy Tezel Yes
Classics Benjamin Wolkow Yes
Communication Daisy Lemus Yes
Dramatic Art Sarah Woodward Yes
Marine Biology Stuart Levenbach Yes
Marine Biology Kurt Anderson Yes
Education Dave Pratt Yes
Education Artemis Savarnejad No
Education John Jabagchourian Yes
Education Elena Skapoulli Yes
Education Heather Tomlinson Yes
Education Alan Bates Yes
Elec. & Computer Engineering | James Buckwalter No
English Gina Valentino Yes
French Claudio dell'Oca Yes
Geography Jeff Onsted No
Geological Sciences Karen Blair Yes
Latin America/lberian Maria Carmen Lozano No
Linguistics Petra Shenk Yes
Materials Brian Naughton No
Mathematics Roger Roybal No
Music Rebecca Giacosie Yes
Music Nichole Dechanie No
Physics Alan Levy Yes
Political Science Sabrina Pinnell Yes
Psychology Brooke Vick No
Religious Studies Alyson Prude Yes
Religious Studies Holly Grether Yes
Sociology Patricia Drew Yes
Sociology Karl Bryant Yes
Spanish & Portuguese Jorge Perez No







GSA General Council Meeting Minutes
November 7, 2001
l. Approval of Minutes
A. Minutes from the October 3, 2001, meeting were approved.
Il. Approval of Agenda
A. Agenda for the meeting was approved.
I1l.  Departmental Representative Duties

A. Kelly Pollock spoke about the creation of a listserv separate from the
general GSA announcements list which will relay important
announcements to all of the department reps. Kelly mentioned that she and
John Corbett will work to implement the said listserv. In addition, she
explained how graduate representatives should register with the Office of
Student Life.

IV. Graduate Division

John Hajda, Graduate Division Director of Student Services, explained funding
support for extramural activities. He announced a new peer position to help with
applications, as well as two new listservs to announce awards and career
workshops.

John also announced that he is working with various industries to initiate a series
of career events for jobs in both academia and the private sector. He requested
input from graduate students regarding the nature of these events, making his
business cards available for that purpose.

Alyssa Mullen was introduced as John’s assistant in putting the career events
together. She also explained that she was a contact for students who need
information in thesis and dissertation filing. She will also be holding events and
assembling support groups to help students better understand the thesis and
dissertation process.

V. Vox Populi!
No issues were raised by the General Council.

VI. Campus Resources

A. Budget & Planning: Capital Development





Martie Levy, Director of Capital Development, outlined the current and
proposed development projects on the UCSB campus. Among the
highlights were:

o The capital planning budget is $630 million over the next five to seven
years.

o Sewers will be replaced along Mesa Road.

o The Engineering Science Building will commence construction in Lot 10
in December.

o A proposed "New Academic Building", which is projected to be
completed by 2007, will house several programs currently in Phelps Hall,
and will represent the largest building construction on campus in decades.

Jessica Winston observed that no capital projects involving the library
were part of the presentation. Martie noted that the library is currently in
the visioning stages of expansion and renovation.

A graduate student raised the issue of payment for parking development.
Martie believed that the campus is a more likely revenue source than the
state. Various possibilities for funding include differential rates and event
surcharges.

VII. Information ltems
A. Presentation of the proposed new GSA Constitution

Alan Levy, member of the Constitution Committee, presented a draft of
the proposed new constitution for consideration. In addressing questions
about its relation to the current constitution, Alan explained that while the
proposed constitution will be submitted as a technical amendment to the
current constitution, in essence it will be an entirely new constitution.
Unlike the current constitution, much of the specific rules governing GSA
activities will be deferred to bylaws to increase flexibility. Alan expects to
have a final version ready by January. Jessica and Alan encouraged
continual feedback throughout the drafting process.

B. Campus Elections Reform Update
Shawn Landres, GSA Internal President, explained that changes will be
made in the campus consultation milestones. The Campus Elections
Commission is currently reviewing technical details in the guidelines.

C. Officer Reports

Alan Levy, member of the Graduate Students Health Insurance Plan
Committee, reported that the pharmacy is open. He noted that the





commencement of GSHIP will be moved closer to the beginning of the
quarter in the future. He explained that Dr. Cindy Bowers, Director of
Student Health, cited the current budget crunch as possibly leading to
graduate student visitation fees or increased lock-in fees. Shawn noted that
Dr. Bowers will speak at the December meeting of the General Council,
and that questions directed toward her should be prepared in advance.
Alan also noted that flu shots will be available on Tuesdays (9:00 to
11:00) and Wednesday (1:00 to 4:00).

Soomin Chun, GSA Vice President of Student Affairs, passed along a
request for the submittal of artwork for display in Ucen.

Diane Gayan Meschyan raised the issue of the funding of the computer
capital account. Shawn expressed concern that SFAC may wind up using
leftover discretionary funding for computers that the state has already
promised. Jessica proposed that the share of registration fees paid by
graduate students be examined so that graduate students receive computer
funding consistent with their share of contributions. Edward Collins, GSA
External President, opposed what he called the "divvying up™ of computer
funds. Marc Mark Schuller was concerned about provoking undergraduate
"hostility" by doing so.

Shawn requested a volunteer to serve a three-year appointment as a
graduate representative on SFAC. He noted that a vote would be held later
in the meeting.

Edward reported on the Coordinating Council on Graduate Affairs
(CCGA), noting that the graduate report was well received. There is still
an outstanding issue regarding the ownership of intellectual property with
regard to graduate students and course materials. He requested volunteers
to serve as a representative of the CCGA.

VIII. Action Items
A. Committee Appointments/Confirmations
Graduate student nominees to serve on campus committees were approved,
including Alan Levy on SHAKSHAC, John Corbett on CEPAP, and Edward
Collins on IVPAC. Committee representatives are listed at
www.gasa.ucsb.edu/committees.

B. Budget

1. Office & committee stipend adjustments (Operating)





Sarah noted that the stipend available to officers should be increased as
commitments increased. Edward moved, and Karen seconded. The motion
was approved.

2. Copier purchase authorization adjustment (Capital)

Kathy Meyer, GSA Treasurer, requested an increase in the
capital account allocated to purchasing copy machines from
$500 to $750. Motion was seconded and approved.

C. Funding Requests
1. Pueblo event

A representative of the Latina/Latino Graduate Student Association (aka
Pueblo) requested funding in the amount of $300 for the presentation of a
movie entitled "Follow Me Home". Motion for funding was passed.

Shawn noted after the vote that few campus groups take advantage of the
funding available for groups like Pueblo and asked department
representatives to pass along the information.

D. GSA lIssues Agenda 2001-2002

Shawn introduced the issues agenda as being smaller than previous
agendas, as the goal was to draft an agenda that was relevant, specific, and
concise. The three issues addressed on the draft were the library, parking
and alternative transportation, and computing and research facilities.

Karen Blair questioned the need to have the library listed as one of the
three issues, as it was already addressed within the five-year plan. Shawn
responded to this concern by proposing that no new buildings should be
built before the library is renovated and expanded.

Mark Schuller suggested a fifth point under the library section, noting that
graduate students should have equity of fax access to articles. Shawn
agreed that this was a good point to add.

Mark continued with his comments, explaining that housing was more
popular of an issue among his peers in Anthropology than computing and
research facilities. Mark distributed a memorandum drawn up along these
lines.

Soomin raised the issue regarding the availability of ethernet hookups
when the graduate student's department would not provide one.





Shawn explained that housing was not listed as an issue on the agenda
because it was already a viable political issue, and that the agenda would
be most effective by highlighting issues that have not received as much
attention. A representative then responded by explaining that by that logic
parking should not be included as an issue. Another representative added
that housing should be emphasized by graduate students to overcome
potential undergraduate opposition to graduate goals.

Jessica suggested in addition to other housing concerns that international
graduate student housing issues should also be mentioned in a revised
agenda. Shawn added that the university should be encouraged to
reexamine its own proposed and current housing projects in light of
graduate concerns.

Shawn moved Shawn invited a motion to approve the GSA issues agenda,
such that the agenda should fit on a 8 1/2" by 14" legal-size paper with
four issues: housing, library, parking, and computing chosen in that order

by popular vote. Such a motion was introduced from the floor and
seconded.

E. UCSA
1. UCSA issues agenda
Emily from English seconded motion to vote on the agenda as a whole
after some debate as to whether the GSA should vote only on particular
selected issues.
Edward motioned that language regarding prisons should be struck,
otherwise, he explained, to vote on it would require additional time and
effort.
Motion passed to vote on all but prisons.
2. UCSA budget
Approved by acclimation.

F. Sexual Harassment Advisory Panel
Shawn requested two volunteers for the Sexual Harassment Advisory
Panel. Soomin expressed interest in pursuing this matter further in future

meetings.

G. The General Council voted to appoint Petra Shank (Linguistics) to a three-year
term on SFAC.





IX. Discussion ltems

A. Student Resources: New Building, New Services?
Soomin briefly raised the issue of the resources that graduate students need to "get
out of here." She requested that graduate representatives solicit comments on
what services graduate students need to enhance their ability to fulfill their
requirements in a timely fashion.

B. Impending State & UC Budget Cuts=» UCSB impact?

No discussion was raised on this issue.

X. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m.






GSA General Council Meeting Minutes
October 1, 2001
I. Approval of Minutes
A. Minutes from the June 6, 2001 meeting were approved.
I1. Approval of Agenda
A. Agenda for the meeting was approved.
I11. Officer Introductions
A. Introduction of GSA Officers
Shawn introduced this year’s GSA officers.
B. Introduction of AS Officers
Shawn introduced the AS President, Brian Hampton, and AS Internal Vice
President, Shaina Walter. Shawn, Brian, and Shaina all expressed an
interest in coordinating activities and discussions of AS and GSA.
IV. Graduate Division
Mary McMahon, Assistant Dean of Graduate Division, announced that the
Graduate Division Website has lots of information that is useful for graduate
students, including announcements and copies of messages that go out over e-
mail: www.graddiv.ucsb.edu.
She also announced that some new financial awards/support is now available:
There are dissertation fellowships available for spring. Also, there are additional
travel funds for doctoral students in humanities, fine arts, education, and the
social sciences. Funds are for travel between December and January. People who
have received this grant in the past may be eligible for additional monies. More

information and applications are available at www.graddiv.ucsb.edu.

The Graduate Dean has some money to support graduate student conferences and
journals. For more information, contact Graduate Division.

The new Graduate Student Handbook and Filing Guide is available on the
Graduate Division website at www.graddiv.ucsb.edu.





McMahon also described some upcoming events: The Graduate Division and
Graduate Council will soon take part in a national on-line survey of graduate
students. The on-line survey will also ask questions specific to UCSB.

Graduate Student appreciation week is coming up.
V. Vox Populi!

A graduate student asked for more movie nights on a variety of nights. Kelly
responded that the GSA does its best to provide a range of activities on different
nights.

Gary Castaneda introduced himself as the new Outreach & Diversity Peer in
Graduate Division. The Graduate Outreach & Diversity Peer Advisor can be
reached at: outreachpeer@graddiv.ucsb.edu or elguapO0l@umail.ucsbh.edu.

Joe Navarro, the Associate Dean of Students, noted that a graduate student
representative is needed to serve on the faculty/student conduct committee. If you
would like to serve, please contact Joe Navarro at navarro-j@sa.ucsb.edu or
Shawn Landres at internal-president@gsa.ucsb.edu.

V1. Campus Resources

Dr. Cindy Bowers, Director of Student Health, Dr. Jane Carlisle, Director of
Counseling Services at Counseling & Career Services, each gave brief
presentations on the counseling services available to students on campus.

Dr. Bowers said that Student Health deals mostly with psychiatric issues (such as
eating disorders, alcohol, and other drug problems). Access to psychiatric services
at Student Health is mostly related to the prescribing of medications. Students
who need psychiatric counseling are mostly referred to doctors who are off-
campus. She said that students should be aware that some psychiatric disorders,
by law, are treated as physical disorders and, therefore, have different insurance
coverage. Be sure to talk with insurance counselors at Student Health if you have
questions.

Dr. Carlisle gave a handout with statistics on the sorts of issues and students

treated by Counseling Services. She also announced that a newly revised TA
Booklet, which provides general information about how to access psychiatric
services on campus, will be published soon.

Yonie Harris, Dean of Students, also gave a short presentation and asked for
feedback on how graduate students and undergraduate students are doing in the
wake of the September 11 tragedy. Students said that they had either felt or
observed people feeling powerless, disconnected, and even helpless. In response





to a question from Shawn about whether people were compartmentalizing their
responses to the tragedy, many students said that they were indeed doing that.

Mary McMahon expressed concern that Federal legislation on immigration
floated in congress in response to Sept. 11 may negatively affect international
students, who come into the country on student visas.

VII. Information ltems
A. Student Resource Building/Campus Elections Reform Update
Alan Levy, Department Representative from Physics and member of the Campus
Elections Commission, noted that the CEC has formed an independent working
group to review CEC guidelines, with a focus on graduate student complaints
about election rules from last year. In addition, he is representing the GSA’s
complaints at the CEC itself.
B. GSA Constitution Committee Update
Alan Levy, also a member of the Constitution Committee, noted that the GSA
Constitution Committee had revised the constitution and would soon be bringing
a new draft constitution before the General Council for comment.

VIII. Action Items
Shawn briefly introduced Chancellor Henry Yang and welcomed him to the
meeting. He then observed that the Agenda needed to be amended to include the
approval of graduate student representatives on campus-wide committees. A
motion was made, seconded, and approved to amend the agenda.

A. Budget—~Preliminary Allocation for *01-*02

Kathy Meyer, the Treasurer, presented the budget. The budget was approved
unanimously.

B. Press-Secretary Election

John Corbett, from Geography, was nominated to be press-secretary. He was
elected by general acclaimation.

C. Committee Representatives

Graduate student nominees to serve on campus committees were approved.
Committee representatives are listed at www.gsa.ucsb.edu/committees

IX. Discussion Items





A. Campus/Classroom Safety & Security

Students discussed their concerns about safety and security and discuss the
pros/cons of having an anonymous referral system, which would allow students
who are concerned about another student to refer him/her to campus officials
anonymously.

Joe Navarro said that he would be willing to intervene in cases where students are
disruptive or otherwise violate campus regulations.

B. GSA Issues Agenda

The General Council discussed items that should be added to this year’s Issues
Agenda. Students noted their concern about graduate research facilities (library,
cubicles, computing facilities) as well as parking & alternative transportation,
housing, and the library. A draft of the Issues Agenda, based on this discussion
and a discussion had at the GC last sprint, will be presented to the GC at the
November meeting.

X. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 7:50pm.





